
Index of Place Names in Girthon (G) & Anwoth (A) :  initial letter H 

Name P Also known as Earliest Comments   Grid Reference 

Hacks of Anwoth A   The old road from Clachan of Anwoth to Skyreburn glen. 

Hack- according to John MacTaggart Scottish Gallovidean Encyclopedia: 

Hacks are rocky, mossy wild areas. 

NX5756 

Haffie’s Field  G  Field on Low Creoch named after family who grazed their animals there. 

(James Murray Usher) 

 

Halfmark A   Mentioned as part of Rusko Estates c. 1856. (Russell)  

Halfway House Bo   On A755 (Gatehouse to Kirkcudbright road)  NX638522 

Hamewith A   House 33 Fleet Street 

Hannay Street A Previously 

George Street 

 Named after Hannay family from Kirkdale? Street leading from Fleet 

Street to Boat Green. 

Hard Croft A   Farm NX576550 

Harper’s Hill Fort G   A Celtic iron age fort on hill overlooking River Fleet and Barlay Mill. 

Close to the High Ford. (Russell) 

NX601573 

Harper’s Wood G Fleet Farm 

Cottage (ex Iain 

Broadfoot) 

 House. Name of house suggested by Mrs Murray Usher. A family of 

tinkers called Harper used to regularly camp in the area. (Jack Nelson) 

Memory Lane 

Hawthorn Cottage A   In 1851 census.  

Heat Haggies     Remains of an old meander beside River Fleet. 

Shown on 1854 O.S. Map. 

NX595581 

Henderson’s Shop G   Grocers shop run by Henderson family (   ???). Later became Co-op and is 

now a gift shop. 

High Street, opposite Town 

Clock. 

Henry Joiners G    6 Catherine Street 

Henry’s shop    Miss Henry sold alcohol c. 1850. (Russell)  

Hermitage, The G   Conversion of 3 workers cottages into one house c.2006. Swan Street 

Heugh    Celtic word for a height or cliff. (Russell)  

High Ardwall A   See Ardwall, High NX577556  

High Auchenlarie A   See Auchenlarie, High  

High Barlay Farm G   See Barlay, High  

High Creoch G   See Creoch, High  

High Creoch Burn G   Part of the lade system. Water from Loch Whinyeon via a tunnel into the 

High Creoch Burn and into the lade system with water from Laghead 

Burn. 

NX6159 

High Creoch 

Wood 

G    NX608585 

High Creoch G   Shown on 1854 O.S. Map.  



Name P Also known as Earliest Comments   Grid Reference 

Wood 

High Flilarg G   Shown on 1854 O.S. Map.  On site of present day Laurieston Road houses. NX605577 

High Ford    Ford over River Fleet in Roman times. Close to Roman Camp near 

Girthon Cemetery. 

NX595572 

High Lodge G   Lodge into Cally Estate from B727. NX616552 

High Point G   Chalet Sandgreen 

High Street G Front Street 

and Main 

Street. 

 Part of A75 until Gatehouse bypass built in ?? 

On 1854 O.S. Map called Main Street. In 1881 census as High Street. 

Number 15 (dated c. 1766) is possibly the oldest property. 

The principle street in the 

town built with shops and 

merchants’ homes. 

High Tide G   Hut at Carrick (2003 owners map). One of the original huts in 1940’s. 

Built from a joiners workshop from Glencaple. 

NX579514 

High Trees A   House on Ramsey Wood estate.  

Hill Cottage G Lochlyoch  See Lochlyoch NX60566 

Hill Entry    In 1881 census.  

Hillcrest A   House Ramsey Wood 

Hillhead G   Cottage.  NX608566 

On hill to eastern end of 

Gatehouse. Access from B?? 

Hillfoot G   Modern house built in garden of Ardmore on the Cut.  

Hilltop G   Cottage near Rainton Farm NX604523 

Hinton A   Middle English Hine’s toun = the dwelling of the peasant. (Maxwell) 

In 1851 census. 

NX545527 

Hitler's Bridge    Bridge on Chain Road between Gatehouse and Creetown. Coffin etched on 

parapet 

 

Holeburn G Burniehole  Now on Townhead farm. Note from Thomas Murray in 19th century  

Holecroft A    NX525527 

Holmhead A  Anwoth 

Banns 

Skyreburn  

Holywood    Celts believed that some of their Gods lived in groves of woods at the top 

of hills, hence Holywood. 

 

Home Cottage A   Schoolmaster lived here in 1851 census. Skyreburn ? 

Hope Cottage G Hopedene  See Hopedene Woodside Terrace 

Hope Dene G Hope Cottage  House. Called Hope Cottage in 1881 census. Woodside Terrace 

Horatio Square G   Named after Horatio Murray Baillie from Cally House ? 

Built in 1782.  (Russell) 

Name now includes properties in Old Posting Stables. 

Consists of one Georgian 

House 

Hornsby Hall G 37 Catherine  37 Catherine Street – home of the Hornsby Family, brickmakers. (Jessie  



Name P Also known as Earliest Comments   Grid Reference 

Street Fergusson) 

Hungry Stone     On Calside. Possible used to mark medaeval drove road over hill  

Hunter’s Square G Deil’s Elbow ?   Possibly the small square 

between the Brewery Brae 

and High Street. 

Hut, The G J and J 

Twa Jeanies 

Linjoto 

 Formerly the Fisherman’s house at Carrick. Original house burnt down in 

1936.  Rebuilt as a holiday chalet by the Sassoon family from 

Kirkcudbright later that year and called ‘Jand J’ after sons Joey & Jackie. 

Returned to original name by Jean Horn great great granddaughter of 

William Davidson the fisherman.  

Carrick NX5750 

 


